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NEW WINDSOR ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
In the Matter of the Application of
FRANK MAURICE

65-1-16.12
MEMORANDUM OF
DECISION DENYING
AREA VARIANCES

#99-42.

WHEREAS, FRANK MAURICE, P. 0. Box 366, Vails Gate, N. Y. 12584, has made
application before the Zonmg Board of Appeals for a 68.8 ft. lot mdih and 28.8 ft. street frontage
variance to construct a smgle-family dwelling on Mt Airy Road in an R-3; and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held November 22,1999; reconvened on November
22, 1999 when a decision to deny the variance was made. On January 10,2000 members of the
ZBA entertained a motion to rescind the denial of 11/22/99 based upon new information; and a
new public hearing was held on January 24,2000, and adjourned to February 14, 2000; decision
to deny was then rendered on 28th day of February, 2000 before the Zoning Board of Appeals at
the Town Hall, New Wmdsor, New York; and
WHEREAS, the Applicant was represented by Michael Reis, Realtor; and
WHEREAS, there were five spectators appearing at the public hearing; and
WHEREAS, two spoke in opposition to this Application; and
WHEREAS, a decision was made by the Zoning Board of Appeals on the date of the
public hearing denying the application; and
WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of New Windsor sets forth the
following findings in this matter here memorialized in furtherance of its previously made decision
in this matter:
1. The notice of public hearing was duly sent to residents and businesses as prescribed by
law and in The Sentinel also as required by law.
2. The evidence presented by the Applicant showed that:
(a) The property is a vacant lot in a neighborhood of one-family homes, this lot having
been created by the subdivision of a larger lot some years ago. The larger lot has had a house
erected upon it but the Zoning Law requirements for lot width and street frontage have changed
since the creation of the smaller lot and the Applicant now seeks variances in order to construct
upon the smaller or vacant lot which is the subject of this Application.

(b) It appears that even if the two lots were still combined, no subdivision having taken
place, the combined lots would meet the present requirement for roadfrontagebut would not
meet the requirement for lot width because the Zoning Local Law as it presently exists measures
lot width at thefrontyard set back which is differentfromthe way its was previously measured.
(c) When the lot was originally subdivided, an easement was created for the use of a
common driveway. Since the granting of that subdivision, the legal requirements of the Town of
New Windsor have changed and multiple lots would now need to be serviced by a private road
built to private road specifications, to be built.
(d) Because of the height differential between this property and the neighboring
properties, it appears that in order to utilize the subject property it would be necessary to create a
"flip" on the ade adjoining the property in order to support a driveway or private road. Based on
neighbors* complaints, it appears that the existing topography lends itself to poor dramage and that
any change in that topography could resuh in drainage and/or septic effluent.
WHEREAS, The Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of New Wmdsor makes the
following conclusions of law here memorialized in fiirtherance of its previously made decision in
this matter:
1. The requested variances will produce an undesirable change in the character of the
neighborhood or create a detriment to nearby properties because if the variances are granted the
property may, and apparently will have to in order utilize the property, put in a private road or
driveway which will necessarily mean that the topography of the area adjoining the neighboring
property will have to be altered and will change the drainage of the area as well, all to the
detriment of that neighboring property.
2. There is now no other feasible method available to the Applicant which can produce
the benefits sought. (See paragraph 5 below).
3. The variance requested is substantial in relation to the Town regulations and is not
warranted.
4. The requested variances will have an adverse effect or impact on the physical or
environmental conditions in the neighborhood or zoning district. (See paragraph 1 above).
5. The difficulty the ^plicant feces in conforming to the bulk regulations is self-created
and should not be allowed. The Applicant created the problem by subdividing the property and by
not applying for a building p^mit within the three-year "grandfather" time allowed by the Town
Law.
6. The benefit to the Applicant, if the requested variances are granted, does not outweigh
the detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood or community.
7. The requested variances as previously stated is not appropriate and although if granted

it would be adequate to allow the Applicant relief from the requirements from the Zoning Local
Law. A granting would not, at the same time, preserve and protect the character of the
ndghborfaood and health, safety and welfare of the community. See paragraph 1 above.
8. The interests ofjustice will not be served by allowing the granting of the requested area
variances. See paragraph 1 above.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT
RESOLVED, that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of New Windsor DENY a
request for a 68.8 ft. lot width and 28.8 ft. street frontage variances to construct single-family
dwelling on Mt. Airy Road in an R-3 zone.
BE rr FURTHER
RESOLVED, that the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of New
Windsor transmit a copy of this decision to the Town Clerk, Town Planning Board and Applicant.
Dated: May 22,2000.
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TO:

ATTORNEY KRIEGi

FROM:

PAT

SUBJECT:

MAURICE, FRANK

DATE:

MARCH 23, 2000

Following your request, I reviewed the Frank Maurice file #99^2 and find the
fbOowing:
February 28, 2000 - DEQSION TO DENY APPQCATION 3-0;
February 14, 2000 - PuWk: Hearing continued from 1/24/00.
Not enough members present for quorum.
Matter adjourned to 2/28/00;
January 24, 2000 - Although many spectatx)rs spoke In oppositkxi,
there were not suffkient members present for
quorum to vote on applkatkxi; Matter
acljoumed to February 14, 2000;
Mike Reis requests that a new publk: hearing
be hek) based on new information.
January 10, 2000 - Members of ZBA entertained a motk)n to
rescind denial of 11/23/99 based upon new
informatkxi submitted.
November 22,1999 - Publk: Hearing reoxivened from 11/08/99.
DECISION TO DENY APPUCATION 4-0.
November 08,1999 - Initial Publk: Hearing heki. Four spectators
present All oppose appUcatkxi. Vote tabled by
ZBA for next meeting of 11/22J99. Mike Reis was to
obtain further informatkxi regarding status of
prevkxjs approval of Subdiviskm by P.B.
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TOWN OF NEW WINDSOR
TOWN HALL, 555 UNION AVENUE
NEW WINDSOR, NEW YORK 12553
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STATE OF NEW YORK,
ss.

TOWN OF NEW WINDSOR

I hereby certify, that the items of this account are correct; that die didwrsements and serrkes
charged therein have in faa been made and rendered, and that no part thereof has been paid or sad^ed, diat the
amount herein mentioned is in full settlement for all ser«rkes renderedf^lkd materials fumisbed.
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February 28, 2000
MAURICE, FRANK
MR. TORLEY: With the members of the board's
permission, I move the Frank Maurice public hearing to
the end of the list, therefore, we'll move to the next.
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HAVFTCg, FRAIIK
Mr. Michael Reis appeared before the board for this
proposal.
MR. TORLEY: This is a public hearing which was
continued from January 24, which is requested by Frank
Maurice. Request for 68.8 ft. lot width and 28.8 ft.
street frontage to construct single-family dwelling on
Mt. Airy Road in an R-3 zone.
MR. REIS: Thank you. I'm here on behalf of Frank and
Leah Maurice. We started this about four months ago.
And thank you for your patience.
MR. TORLEY:

Back in the last millennium.^

MR. REIS: The original objections to the requested
variances was a potential creating of a cliff on the
adjacent property and creating a standing water in the
long driveway in the property to the rear. We have
since determined that we now have an easement that
accesses both lots. And the easement meanders through
the driveways of both properties, the bulk of the
easement is on the non-improved lot. Since we've got
objections because we have the easement that we were
not aware of in the beginning, we're requesting that
the variances be passed. If you have any questions?
MR. TORLEY: Mike, have you had any other information
or time to think about whether this now requires a
private road?
MR. BABCOCK:
MR. TORLEY:
foot width?
MR. BABCOCK:
MR. TORLEY:

Yes, it does.
And the private road would be, it's a 50
Fifty foot easement.
Thirty foot pavement?

MR. BABCOCK: No, I think it's 18 foot pavement with
three foot shoulders.
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And swales, et cetera?

MR. BABCOCK:

Yes.

MR, KANE: But having the easement go from the street
to the property in the back does not relieve them from
getting a variance on that lot?
MR. BABCOCK:

No.

MR, TORLEY: Nor can it relieve them from the private
road statute.
MR. KANE:

Just wanted to check.

MR. REIS: Correct me if I'm wrong, Mike, we're going
to attack the private road issue as a separate issue
after we get the variance?
MR. BABCOCK: That's what they're saying, basically,
that's how I'm understanding it anyway.
MR. KRIEGER:

Yeah, it's an independent requirement.

MR. BABCOCK:

Right.

MR. KRIEGER: Which is not affected either way but in
any way but whatever action this board takes still
exists or doesn't exist according to the law.
MR. TORLEY:

Nor do we have any power to vary that.

MR. KRIEGER: This board can't vary it, it can't change
it, it can't have anything to do with it, it's a
separate issue.
MR. TORLEY: I'd like to reopen it back to the public
for comments. Gentlemen, ladies?
MR. RICHARD THORPE: I have a question, even though it
don't directly affect m e , but I can see where it would
affect both Mr. Maurice and Mr. McCullough, assuming
you gave the variance and in order to comply with the
building codes of a private road, you're talking about
considerable expense putting the driveway in, assuming

February 28, 2 000
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you wanted to comply with the building code. Would you
then have, Mr. McCullough have to pay half that cost so
by creating the variance you indirectly would be
affecting him with a great deal of money possibly?
MR. TORLEY: I would, not knowing, not being a lawyer
nor seeing the actual deeds stipulations I have no
opinion on that. I do have a question as to whether
that road frontage with the road width and swales, et
cetera, whether that would get us back into the problem
of the formation of the cliff on the property margin?
MR. THORPE:

Might happen too, yeah.

MR. THORPE:

You know the answer to that, Mike?

MR. REIS: This is all hypothetical situations, I think
that we'll have to cross that road when we get to it,
Dick, but right now, we're dealing with a substandard
frontage, front yard and that's the only issue right
now. Okay, once we go to the planning board and the
building inspector and the Town to create this private
road, however it's going to be, that will be another
issue and I can't anticipate how we're going to handle
that right now.
MR. TORLEY: How big is the, forgive me if I'm, how big
is the easement?
MR. BABCOCK: Thirty feet.
3 0 foot easement?
MR. MC CULLOUGH:

On your property you have a

Yes, it is, that's correct.

MR. BABCOCK: I think it's a 30 foot easement that
splits the property line.
MR. MC CULLOUGH:

Fifteen and fifteen, that's correct.

MR. TORLEY: So the full width of the right-of-way then
or the road would have to be 4 5 or 3 5 feet on the
applicant's property line, if his neighbor does not
grant him anymore of an easement, it's got to be 50
foot width as far as the total width?

February 28, 2000
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Right.

MR. TORLEY: He's got 15 on one side, he's got to go 35
feet on the other side.
MR. BABCOCK:
MR. TORLEY:

That's correct.
What's the total road frontage?

MR. BABCOCK:

On your lot?

MR. REIS: Lot that we're requesting a variance is
33.14 feet.
MR. TORLEY: So you have 3 3 feet, if the code says you
have to have a 50 foot width and you only have 15 foot
right on your neighbor's side, how can you have 50 feet
on yours, when you only have 30, you can't fit the
private road right-of-way requirements on your
property.
MR. REIS:

That's right.

MR. TORLEY: And that right-of-way width, et cetera, is
again something that's out of our jurisdiction to say
anything about.
MR. BABCOCK:

You can't vary it, it's a local law.

MR. REIS: Again, we're talking about, I keep repeating
it, we have two existing lots, okay, that were created
back in the early '80's, the laws have changed since,
as far as the applicant's concerned right now, we're
not changing anything, I believe it's going to come
down to a judicial decision and again, it's all
hypothetical and all conjecture. I don't know how it's
going to be resolved but all we're looking for is the
existing variances as what's stated. And I don't s e e —
MR. KANE: Is there an existing variance on lot 3 on
their road frontage, the other flag lot?
MR. BABCOCK:
MR. REIS:

No.

That was never an issue.
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Because?

MR. BABCOCK:
limits.

Because they built it within the time

MR. REIS: We just want the board to make their
decision based on what exists and not anticipating what
could or what will happen because we don't know yet
what's going to happen. And as it is right now,
there's no impact to the neighbors, consequently,
there's no reason to be denied.
MR. MC DONALD:

How did the cliff problem go away?

MR. REIS: There's an existing easement that's being
utilized, okay, by the existing house and how it's
going to be, how it will be affected remains to be
seen, okay, they're bringing up viable situations that
I just don't have answers for, nobody has them, we're
not changing the lay of the land, we're not creating
any additional runoffs or hazards, we're not creating
any cliffs, just asking for the existing variance.
MR. THORPE: I don't understand once you grant that
variance, assuming you do, in order to comply with the
rest of the law for a private driveway, you're going to
have to change the existence of the land, thus possibly
creating what we started out originally with the cliff,
so I mean, how can you, you say only put one thing in
front of you, you've got to be blind, then you're not
taking into consideration what else is going on around
you.
MR. MC CULLOUGH: That's one issue, what about creating
a private driveway that's a private road that's
definitely going to affect other people, me, and from
what I understand, I have to give approval for that,
you know, am I going to pay for that, no.
MR. REIS:

I certainly hope so.

MR. MC CULLOUGH: Definitely not. I've been here I
don't know how many weeks in a row and it's the same
issues over and over and over again.
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MR. TORLEY: Sir, this is the first time we've had
enough people on the board.
MR. MC CULLOUGH: I don't mean it that way, it's the
same things we're saying over and over, I mean, there's
a lot of problems here, you know, and like I said
before, I mean, there's a lot of things going on with
Dean Hill and the area around it, there's codes and
laws that have to be followed, you know, I mean, before
you know it, we're going to be Manhattan living on top
of each other, I mean, that's why there's laws, you
know.
MR. TORLEY: I have one question that's come up and I
would defer to my attorney for any indications of an
answer on that, if hypothetical we grant the variance
and put in the private road, I mean you're now living
on a private road, how does that affect any of his
status, he's now no longer fronting on the road, he has
a private road, I know we had trouble with the banks on
private roads and I would not know whether his mortgage
might have problems, nor do I have any legal opinion on
it because I'm not a lawyer. I'm sure Andy can.
MR. KRIEGER: I can't say without for certain without
seeing the mortgage and it's, he not being an
applicant.
MR. TORLEY: It's a hypothetical question, I would not
ask you for any hard and fast opinion, I was just
asking whether there's such a situation could arise,
not whether it would—
MR. REIS:

What's the question, Larry?

MR. KRIEGER: Well, let me put it another way. As I
understand, the neighbor to the rear got his mortgage
based on access to a public road driveway to a public
road. Now, will it adversely affect his mortgage if
his access changes to a public road, access to a public
road to access to a private road or put another way,
would it enable the bank to call his mortgage on
account of that change? On the one hand, I don't think
a bank could successfully do that. On the other hand.

